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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: If we wait any

          3  longer we won't be saying good morning, good

          4  afternoon, we will be saying good evening. So we are

          5  just about ready to start this hearing.

          6                 I would like to welcome everyone to

          7  the State and Federal Legislation Committee hearing.

          8  I would like to first recognize the colleagues, my

          9  colleagues, our colleagues who are present here

         10  today.

         11                 To my left we have Ken Fisher, and

         12  joining also is Walter McCaffrey, Mr. Sabini. To my

         13  right, Mr. James Oddo, Mr. Stabile, Council Member

         14  Provenzano.

         15                 We also have with us the Counsel to

         16  the Committee, Mr. Valdes, somewhere behind me, and

         17  to my right we have Mr. Tramontano, who is the

         18  Assistant Director to the Finance Division.

         19  Immediately behind me is the head of the Bronx

         20  Delegation, Council Member June Eisland.

         21                 Today we will consider a variety of

         22  home rule messages, one of which involves a

         23  reconveyance of property for which taxes were not

         24  paid, but where the circumstances were such that the

         25  individuals may be entitled to recoup their former
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          2  property after paying all taxes and penalties.

          3                 This reconveyance will be heard as

          4  Preconsidered SLR.

          5                 Originally this Committee was

          6  scheduled to hear SLR 116 today, a bill that will

          7  provide a critical five points on the written

          8  examination to applicants that are spouses or

          9  children of firefighters and police officers who

         10  have died in the line of duty.

         11                 After discussing this legislation

         12  with the Mayor, and the Fire and Police

         13  Commissioner, the Administration has agreed to

         14  provide this benefit administratively. As a result,

         15  SLR 116 has been taken off of the agenda today.

         16                 We will hear SLR 124, which will

         17  create a presumption in the law for those members of

         18  the Fire and Police Department who contract the HIV

         19  virus. We will consider a preconsidered SLR which

         20  will assure that New York City employees are not

         21  mandated to participate in a retirement plan from

         22  which they cannot receive the intended benefits.

         23                 Additionally, we will consider SLR

         24  103 which will require utility companies and their

         25  contractors to pay their workers the prevailing
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          2  wage.

          3                 The last SLR we will consider is SLR

          4  79. This bill will dedicate the Jerome Park

          5  Reservoir track in the Bronx as parkland. We will

          6  consider a total of seven Mayor's messages. The

          7  first, M572, 574, 575 and 576 and 577 related to

          8  certain transfers and switches of parkland located

          9  throughout the City.

         10                 M69 is an omnibus tax bill, which

         11  will extend various city taxes which are set to

         12  expire on December 31st, 1999, to December 31st,

         13  2001.

         14                 The last Mayor's message will be

         15  Preconsidered, and it will simply extend the City

         16  commuter tax.

         17                 Before the Administration beings

         18  testifying, I am going to request that anyone who

         19  testifies before the Committee summarize their

         20  written remarks and not read them verbatim into the

         21  record.

         22                 Also because there are so many items

         23  on the agenda for us to consider, I am going to

         24  request that everyone keep their remarks to less

         25  than ten minutes.
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          2                 At this moment I would like to know

          3  if the Administration has any objection to the

          4  reconveyance on the agenda today? But however, there

          5  has been a request and in conversation with the

          6  Administration, we are going to be hearing from Mr.

          7  Abe Yaeger on SLR 790, and immediately following Mr.

          8  Yaeger we will hear from Commissioner Hanley.

          9                 We will also be hearing from the

         10  Administration concerning SLR 124, legislation that

         11  will affect members of the Fire and Police

         12  Department.

         13                 At this moment, Mr. Yaeger, welcome,

         14  and I would like to hear from you.

         15                 MR. YAEGER: Thank you very much for

         16  hearing me at this time. My name is Abe Yaeger, I am

         17  President of Amalgamated Houses in the Bronx, and a

         18  Board member of the Jerome Park Conservancy.

         19                 We are supporting a home rule message

         20  in favor of converting the land surrounding the

         21  reservoir at the parkland. For years, even when it

         22  was an operating reservoir, part of New York City

         23  system, Central Park has been opened to the

         24  community. People could run right next to the

         25  Central Park Reservoir. We, of the Bronx, seek
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          2  similar treatment.

          3                 Right now the parklike land

          4  surrounding the reservoir is fenced off. Jerome Park

          5  Conservancy has prepared a proposal to create

          6  valuable asset to the community and to the City. We

          7  are aware that DEP would like to keep their options

          8  open, yet they have already selected another site

          9  for a filtration plant. Indeed, they spent 20 years

         10  planning to build a plant at Jerome without even

         11  looking for an other site and when they did do a

         12  study their study found the problems of building at

         13  Jerome Park were so great as to be prohibitive.

         14                 We have been waiting a long time to

         15  be treated like people in Manhattan to have an

         16  opportunity to use the parkland surrounding the

         17  reservoir. The 1,500 families of Amalgamated, along

         18  with the entire community surrounding the reservoir,

         19  urge you to support and pass this legislation.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         22  much, Mr. Yaeger. We would like to hear at this

         23  moment from Council Member June Eisland.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

         25  very much. I am obviously supportive with Council
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          2  Member Rivera of this request, that is a

          3  long-standing request. Unfortunately for a long time

          4  the Jerome Park Reservoir was cut off from the

          5  people who actually overlook it. It was overgrown,

          6  it was rat infested, it was not -- the area around

          7  it was not properly maintained. But in recent years

          8  both the Parks Department and DEP have been most

          9  cooperative and they have done many improvements

         10  there that have pretty much put back this treasure

         11  to the usage around the reservoir for local

         12  residents.

         13                 We now want to codify that through

         14  working with the established Jerome Park Conservancy

         15  and hope that both departments, which are involved

         16  obviously not only with the reservoir itself but the

         17  land around it, we want to make sure that this is

         18  kept in perpetuity as parklands surrounding the

         19  reservoir, despite whatever improvements may have to

         20  be made through the reservoir itself, and that is

         21  what we are asking for now, simply to do what has

         22  been the usage for this park for a long time but

         23  make it officially a park.

         24                 So, I would certainly ask my

         25  colleagues and the legislature obviously, after we
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          2  hopefully pass this successfully, to codify this.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Can I have a

          5  question to my Council member?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Go right ahead,

          7  Mr. Stabile.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: June, are you

          9  just talking the surrounding of the reservoir, or

         10  the reservoir itself?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Well, this is

         12  basically to be able to use the reservoir area as a

         13  community facility. It is a community facility, it

         14  is magnificent, and obviously we don't want to open

         15  up the reservoir to boating or swimming or any of

         16  those things that happen at Central Park because it

         17  is part of the system. Basically whatever the

         18  technical request is, the intent is to be able to

         19  use this magnificent resource and have it get into a

         20  regular cycle within the budget to keep it

         21  beautified and keep it available for the

         22  constituents.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Are there any

         24  EPA issues on this that we have to concern ourselves

         25  with, as far as the pollution or anything else like
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          2  that?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: That has

          4  never been an issue. Quite frankly, the area has

          5  never been particularly secure. There has been a

          6  rinky dink fence there that was off-putting to

          7  people, but it wasn't particularly secure. It is

          8  actually more secure now because you have

          9  law-abiding citizens jogging in the morning and

         10  kids, you know, in strollers being pushed by

         11  residents, et cetera, and probably the kind of usage

         12  it is getting now is a lot better than when it was

         13  decrepid and you have all kinds of illicit

         14  activities going on in the overgrown weeds and

         15  whatever.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Is that it?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, I would

         19  like to enter for the record in support of SLR 79, a

         20  statement from our Assemblyman Jeffrey Dinowitz who

         21  was unable to be here today as a result of

         22  legislature is in session in Albany. So, I am

         23  turning this over to Counsel.

         24                 At this moment we would like to go

         25  into SLR 124, we would like to welcome Commissioner
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          2  Hanley, and he can speak on some of the items that

          3  we have been speaking about, if he chooses to.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Thank you. My

          5  name is Jim Hanley. I am the Commissioner of Labor

          6  Relations for the City of New York.

          7                 SLR 124, also known as the Hat Bill,

          8  would provide three-quarter line of disability

          9  pension for police and fire officers for hepatitis,

         10  AIDS and tuberculosis.

         11                 We are opposed to this bill and would

         12  ask you to reject it, not pass this bill.

         13                 Since police officers and

         14  firefighters are already covered by a three-quarter

         15  line of duty disability pension as it is right now,

         16  the difference would make this a presumptive, that

         17  it was a line of duty benefit.

         18                 There is no base line testing that we

         19  have for police and firefighters for these ailments

         20  when they first become, these diseases, when they

         21  first become police officers, because we are

         22  prohibited to do so by the Americans With

         23  Disabilities Act.

         24                 So, since we are not allowed to do

         25  any testing for the baseline test in the first
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          2  instance, this presumption we believe not only has

          3  an additional cost, but the City of New York has no

          4  way of telling whether or not there are any of these

          5  ailments present when somebody becomes a police

          6  officer or a firefighter of the City of New York.

          7                 So, for these reasons we would ask

          8  you and urge you not to pass this bill.

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Also there is a

         10  cost attached to this bill of about $4.1 million.

         11  The cost was beared by the Chief Actuary of the City

         12  of New York. And in addition, the City has always

         13  opposed presumptive bills that it was due to, caused

         14  by on-the-job circumstances, we really don't know.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Ms. Provenzano

         16  has a question, and following her will be Council

         17  Member Stabile, and Jimmy, James Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: This

         19  $4,100,000 is over how long a period expansion of

         20  time? The cost factor?

         21                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I believe that

         22  is an annual cost of $4.1 million.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Annual cost.

         24  Okay, let me go back to the Commissioner, even

         25  though we disagree sometimes.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: This is America.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: That's right.

          4  I think I have a very good reputation of being very

          5  pro union. But I am a little confused with this. The

          6  police and fire have a three-quarters bill. The

          7  police and fire have a three-quarters bill, correct

          8  me if I am wrong, okay?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: That's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: We have a

         11  three-quarters bill. If a police officer is injured

         12  in the line of duty or a fireman, any related,

         13  anything, regardless if he is cut, slashed, fell,

         14  hurt, whatever, in the line of duty, performing his

         15  duty as quarterly, he is covered under

         16  three-quarters.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: That is correct.

         18  If they cannot perform their duties they are covered

         19  by a three-quarter disability for the rest of their

         20  life.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay. So, if

         22  a fireman or a police officer, in the course of

         23  duty, God forbid, arrested someone who had AIDS who

         24  bit them or searching someone, the police officer,

         25  and a needle stuck them that they had in their
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          2  pocket and this report would be filed, of course, he

          3  would be entitled automatically to three-quarters if

          4  it was a long-term disability or a

          5  life-threatening?

          6                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: That's correct.

          7  If they can prove that connection, yes.

          8                 This bill is different because the

          9  presumption is automatically.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE:

         11  Automatically.

         12                 But I am a little confused. How do we

         13  know, because under the personal freedom rights that

         14  we have under the Disabilities Act, if I have AIDS

         15  and I took the test and became a police officer, I

         16  was on the job three years, four years and all of a

         17  sudden my HIV status blew up and I became aware that

         18  I had AIDS --

         19                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: And it had

         21  nothing to do with me being a police officer, I

         22  would be entitled to it.

         23                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Under this bill,

         24  yes. The presumption is that it was line of duty.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I feel a
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          2  little uncomfortable with this because we are

          3  assuming, and we can't even get the information to

          4  prove if a person did or did not have the

          5  information because of their own personal freedoms

          6  and their own personal rights which I am not opposed

          7  to, of course. But you are assuming that a person

          8  who came on did not have AIDS and he could have AIDS

          9  or she could have AIDS and as a fireman or a police

         10  officer, they would still have three-quarter

         11  disability and not have any relation to the City or

         12  their service to the City at all.

         13                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: That's correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Commissioner,

         16  can you walk us through the processes now? I mean,

         17  how difficult is it under the existing system and

         18  how much of a burden is it for the firefighter or

         19  the police officer to prove that in fact they

         20  contracted that disease on the job.

         21                 Can you sort of describe?

         22                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: It is not that

         23  difficult a process. You have to prove the incident,

         24  usually when a police officer or a firefighter is

         25  injured in the line of duty there are reports kept
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          2  by the individual's supervisor, in the first

          3  instance a sergeant or fire lieutenant. Obviously

          4  through the Medical Division, as you are going

          5  through follow-up care in the Medical Division. If

          6  you are that sick you are covered by certainly

          7  unlimited sick leave. But the initial contact with

          8  someone who had this ailment, a record is kept of it

          9  by the individual's superior officer on the scene

         10  through the entire incident in care and custody of

         11  that employee. And ultimately the Pension Board

         12  would vote on it and the Pension Board as you know

         13  is made up of lots of representatives of the unions,

         14  as well as management as well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, conversely,

         16  if the burden was on the City, could you point to

         17  the fact that there was no specific report, there

         18  was no specific incident?  Would it be just as easy

         19  for the City to disprove it by saying well there is

         20  no record of any particular incident.

         21                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: It really

         22  doesn't become an issue. If the presumption is if

         23  you develop or have --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But can the City

         25  overcome that presumption and prove?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: It would be

          3  very, very difficult. I mean, if the presumption is

          4  already there, it is like the heart, I mean we have

          5  a heart bill for police officers and firefighters.

          6  If I develop a heart condition, period, done,

          7  finished. The presumption is that it was done in the

          8  line of duty, as a result of my employment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Do Corrections

         10  and EMS currently have this?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Corrections and

         12  EMS have this, but there is a difference.

         13  Corrections and EMS did not have three-quarter line

         14  of duty disability pensions.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: All right, well,

         16  with the Corrections officers and the EMS workers,

         17  have we seen how frequently this is happening and

         18  how many City employees are claiming to contract

         19  this? And if so, is there a cost that we can

         20  attribute to it?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Well, there

         22  would be a cost to Correction and EMS. I don't have

         23  it with me.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Do you have that

         25  information?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I don't have it

          3  with me, no.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: The only thing

          5  I recall last year is I believe the actuary

          6  indicated that the cost of the Correction Hat Bill,

          7  if you will, even though that involved going to

          8  three-quarters, it was 8 million per year. In

          9  addition, I just heard anecdotally that the number

         10  of disability cases on behalf of the Correction

         11  Officers has, I can't say dramatically, but it has

         12  increased since the Hat Bill for Corrections.

         13                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Our experience

         14  data would be somewhat limited since the bill has

         15  only been around for two years. So, it would be

         16  limited.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: At this moment I

         20  want to recognize Councilman Victor Robles.

         21                 Council Member Provenzano has a

         22  question to ask.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: In your

         24  testimony did you not say that a physical

         25  examination for HIV cannot be taken at the present
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          2  time?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: That's correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: For fire

          5  and police?

          6                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

          8                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: For all

          9  employees. There are some minor exceptions here and

         10  there but employees in general. It is protected

         11  under the Americans With Disabilities Act.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         13                 Now, I am looking at the background

         14  statement for this bill and it says this legislation

         15  would provide that any paid member, bla-bla-bla-bla,

         16  who successfully passed a physical examination upon

         17  entering into the service of such department who

         18  contracts HIV, tuberculosis or hepatitis will be

         19  presumed.

         20                 Maybe you are not the one to explain

         21  that to me, but --

         22                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: We don't test

         23  for those ailments. They are otherwise in good

         24  physical condition --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay, so
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          2  they are just talking generally about physical --

          3                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Commissioner, we

          6  are going to go into preconsidered SLR, which is an

          7  application to age 57 retirement program. Would you

          8  like to comment on that one?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Oh, I certainly

         10  would.

         11                 This bill was an improved pension

         12  plan that arose as a result of negotiations with all

         13  of the civilian unions in the City of New York.

         14                 The unions made an application to me

         15  in bargaining for the City to support legislation

         16  improving the pension plan that employees enjoy and

         17  receive.

         18                 As a result of bargaining I did that.

         19  I did it, if we could agree upon the design of the

         20  plan, the cost of the plan and the additional cost

         21  would be borne by the employee. If that happened,

         22  then in fact the City of New York would support

         23  legislation with the union.

         24                 We did that. We supported that

         25  legislation in front of this body initially, and
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          2  ultimately it passed in Albany and it was signed

          3  into law by the Governor.

          4                 As a result of some follow-up

          5  negotiations another year or two later, it was

          6  actually a little over a year later, the Civilian

          7  Unions in New York City said that they would like to

          8  take another look at it because they thought one

          9  piece of the bill, because it was very, very

         10  complicated, should be changed a little bit to bring

         11  down the cost so the employee cost would be a little

         12  bit less, and in addition to that a minor design

         13  change.

         14                 We did that. And as a result of

         15  negotiations, and again, this is a very difficult

         16  drawn-out process, but in good faith we did that.

         17                 We supported that legislation and the

         18  modification in front of this body in the first

         19  instance, you passed it, it was signed into law

         20  ultimately.

         21                 This is just pure and simple, a raw

         22  end run around the process. It is around the

         23  bargaining process, a process that we, in good faith

         24  we could have said no, it was not a mandatory

         25  subject to bargaining. But in good faith we did sit
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          2  down with the unions and supported the legislation

          3  after a great deal of work, and after an agreement

          4  was achieved. On two occasions we did that.

          5                 If this bill were passed or signed

          6  into law, it would change the costs, because it

          7  changes the design. The cost would go up but the

          8  employees would not be bearing that cost. It is pure

          9  and simple, an end run around the bargaining

         10  process, and obviously the City I think would be

         11  much more reluctant to ever enter into a process in

         12  good faith with the unions again when we didn't have

         13  to.

         14                 I think it really would do terrible,

         15  terrible damage to the bargaining process, a process

         16  that we are deeply committed to.

         17                 I urge you not to pass this bill.

         18                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: There is really

         19  not much more to add to Jim's testimony, other than

         20  the cost as I understand it, even from the fiscal

         21  note, is 1.5 million per year, that may translate

         22  down to about a million to the City, and I just

         23  wanted to add that I believe the City, a year after

         24  the original Chapter 96 program was established,

         25  that we did come back to the Council, we got the
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          2  agreed upon rate reduction, and it is too bad that

          3  this could not have been addressed concomitantly at

          4  that time, such that we could be saying that the

          5  bill is cost neutral or the plan is cost neutral, it

          6  is now not, thus we oppose the bill.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I know we

          8  don't have an SLR number, it is just Spano,

          9  Assemblyman -- I can't remember who else. I am

         10  getting old. Okay, Senate 5714 and the rule number.

         11                 My question here is, does this bill

         12  benefit anyone who went into the system too old,

         13  would that be a factor into this? Would that save

         14  the City money then, people would benefit --

         15                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: For an

         16  individual person, it is possible that it might save

         17  an individual person some money, but it costs the

         18  system money.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Even if they

         20  withdrew from it?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Yes, such an

         22  employee would not be required to join the system.

         23                 The design of the plan was such that

         24  those people joined the system and it is all a

         25  balancing act on all of these pension systems, some
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          2  receive a little bit more than others. There would

          3  be clearly an adverse selection where certain people

          4  would not join the system, and that which was agreed

          5  to twice with the unions that they had to pay the

          6  cost of it, they would be able to get away with it.

          7                 I mean, it really and truly terribly

          8  terrible and destructive to the bargaining process.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Because we

         10  went back twice with this?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Yes. We agreed

         12  across the table and we lived up to our end of the

         13  bargain and they did too.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Negotiated

         15  twice with this?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Commissioner,

         18  would you like to comment on SLR 103 which is in

         19  relation to workers on excavations?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: We have no

         21  position on that bill.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         23  much. Thank you.

         24                 At this moment we would like to hear

         25  from our colleague Walter McCaffrey on SLR 116.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Mr.

          3  Chairman, I thank you very much, and I have heard

          4  with a sense of appreciation your comment that this

          5  is an item that is being with drawn because of an

          6  agreement between the Office of the Mayor and the

          7  Council to procedurally do this within the

          8  administrative largess of the Administration's

          9  retinue of items of both the Police Commissioner and

         10  Fire Commissioner supporting this, I think it is

         11  something that is very, very helpful and I want to

         12  thank Mr. Von Essen, particularly who originally was

         13  supportive of this Council state. As tragically we

         14  are seeing what the consequences of another brave

         15  fire officer who has been killed in the line of

         16  duty, that this is only the appropriate type of

         17  action that we take, and I am delighted that we can

         18  do it in an expeditious fashion, and I thank the

         19  Administration for their cooperative action.

         20                 Thank you. And thank you, Mr.

         21  Chairman, for your support on this.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 At this moment we would like to call

         25  the Actuary, Mr. Robert North, to speak on SLR 124,
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          2  and others.

          3                 MR. NORTH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 I am Robert North, I am the Chief

          5  Actuary for the New York City Retirement System.

          6  With me today is David Lester, Administrative

          7  Actuary, in our office.

          8                 As with some other bills that have

          9  come before the Council, there are controversies on

         10  the cost of the plan of the proposed legislation.

         11                 With respect to this bill, Senate

         12  3796, Assembly 6954, the Actuary prepared a fiscal

         13  note number 99-15 on June 2nd. This bill provides

         14  that in the event a partial total disability due to

         15  HIV, tuberculosis or hepatitis, it is to be presumed

         16  that it is within the course of the line of duty.

         17                 It covers disabled, as well as

         18  presumably those who die as a result of the

         19  conditions.

         20                 Under current law, if there were no

         21  changes, one thing that is clear is that this would

         22  evolve -- if this legislation is enacted, the

         23  experience would evolve over time and after the

         24  event the cost would be incurred as you see in the

         25  Fiscal note attached to the bill by Mr. Jonathan
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          2  Schwartz. There would be a cost very low, maybe

          3  nothing for Fiscal Year 2000, but it would rise over

          4  time.

          5                 As part of understanding, the Actuary

          6  Office believes that the best way to think about

          7  these bills is that the cost of the plan is the

          8  benefits it pays and the ultimate cost is the actual

          9  present value measured at the time that you consider

         10  a bill. The actuary believes under the assumption

         11  that he proposed in the Fiscal note, that the

         12  ultimate actual present value of benefits of this

         13  bill is upwards of $36 million in value today, and

         14  then it is just a question of when does it get paid

         15  for.

         16                 Now, the actuary believes that in the

         17  event such legislation is enacted, the actuary will

         18  recommend changes in the assumptions and methods, to

         19  account for this to be financed over the working

         20  lifetimes of members. Rather than waiting until

         21  after the event occurs which would be an

         22  inappropriate financial process, because it would

         23  violate the basic intergenerational funding that we

         24  take as a basic philosophy.

         25                 Under the assumptions we employed
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          2  where we assumed something on the order of five

          3  percent of all of the existing ordinary disability

          4  retirements would now be reclassified as accident

          5  disability and approximately 15 percent of ordinary

          6  deaths would be classified as accidental deaths, and

          7  these assumptions are just based on judgement, and

          8  as you know during the working lifetimes in

          9  particular with respect to death, we tend not to

         10  have too many deaths fortunately from ordinary

         11  causes. So, it doesn't take much of a percentage to

         12  change this over.

         13                 But on that basis we end up with this

         14  actuarial present value of benefits of an additional

         15  $36 million. That, if funded over the working

         16  lifetimes of members in the first year would cost

         17  $4.1 million per year and that cost would continue

         18  in effect over the working lifetimes of members.

         19                 The actuary feels very strongly that

         20  this, of course, is the appropriate way to finance

         21  such a benefit and to give you an idea of a similar

         22  piece of legislation. There was a bill before the

         23  Committee, the Council and the Legislature in 1995,

         24  I believe, regarding cancer being presumed line of

         25  duty, certain types of cancer as being considered
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          2  line of duty.

          3                 The methodology I have described for

          4  costing this bill, the actuary in fact made those

          5  changes in the actuarial assumptions in 1995, in

          6  order to properly price the bill, and I believe in

          7  practice there have been cases that have been

          8  processed under that former legislation and in fact

          9  the benefits paid have been higher and in fact there

         10  has been a higher cost.

         11                 Finally, I just would like to note

         12  that further to complicate the problem, the actuary

         13  doesn't want it to go unnoted that there are certain

         14  things that are not measured in the actuary's

         15  costing.

         16                 We have not taken into account that

         17  certain members who are on full-time sick leave

         18  might not now take retirement. This would save

         19  payroll.

         20                 On the other hand, upon the rehiring

         21  of a new policeman or a firefighter, the payroll

         22  would be replaced possibly for a period of time at a

         23  somewhat lower level. And there would then be

         24  additional medical costs due to the existence of

         25  both the retired and an active police or fireman.
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          2                 In summary, I just would like to say

          3  it is difficult to develop the costing for these

          4  bills, but it is important to understand that the

          5  actuary believes you should look at the ultimate

          6  cost. There will then be some questions on the

          7  incidence, and I would just like to come before you

          8  and point out that as the actuary I feel it is my

          9  duty to recommend changes and assumptions in the

         10  enactment of such a bill and consequently it is more

         11  likely to hit the budget on the order of $4 million

         12  if enacted, rather than the zero dollars in the

         13  first year as suggested on the fiscal note that is

         14  in the bill.

         15                 Thank you. I will be glad to answer

         16  any questions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Listening

         18  to you talk about the bill, I think I have to agree

         19  with Al, I totally don't understand to this point

         20  either.

         21                 Is there some kind of a figure, and

         22  this may be an impossibility, that you can give us

         23  as far as actual people that might be involved,

         24  maybe looking at other agencies or, I mean could you

         25  kind of put --
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          2                 MR. NORTH: What might be --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Because I

          4  can't imagine what 4.1 million would cover.

          5                 MR. NORTH: Okay, with respect to

          6  police and fire, in assuming that five percent of

          7  those currently estimated to go out on ordinary

          8  disability were instead reclassified as accident

          9  disabilities, we have estimated that means at least

         10  initially there would be at least six additional

         11  accident disabilities in police and one

         12  approximately, one additional accident disability in

         13  fire, thus a total of seven additional accident

         14  disabilities, rather than ordinary disabilities.

         15                 Now, the cost of just the disability

         16  part of this works out to be about $2.3 million per

         17  year, and you may wonder why that seems to be such a

         18  large cost.

         19                 Well, the difference in the benefits

         20  that are payable -- well, first of all, the number

         21  of disabilities depends on the average agent service

         22  of the group, and the rates tend to rise as people

         23  get older for ordinary disability, and in particular

         24  the Police Department, its average age in service

         25  has come down in recent years as a consequence of
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          2  Safe Street - Safe City, and it is expected that

          3  number will rise somewhat into the future as the

          4  work force ages.

          5                 So, I hope that helps a little bit.

          6  Unfortunately, I don't have the number of deaths.

          7  The number of deaths I think is somewhat less, we

          8  are fortunate in the ordinary sense.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: The age

         10  factor of the person who contracts AIDS, does that

         11  play a factor into this also, about the life

         12  expectancy and the person who would get, the average

         13  age of a person who contracts AIDS, does that play a

         14  factor into this, a cost factor?

         15                 MR. NORTH: In developing the fiscal

         16  note, we have used the average statistic of the

         17  mortality and expected disabilities of members.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Because I

         19  have another question to ask on this. I hate to open

         20  this can of worms, but I have to.

         21                 Let's go into the domestic

         22  partnership, okay? Let's say I have AIDS, my lover,

         23  let's say it's Jimmy Oddo, now I contract AIDS,

         24  okay, and I die and he is down as my beneficiary,

         25  when I take my option, when I am retired with
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          2  three-quarters from police or fire, and I choose him

          3  as my beneficiary, and the option plan I take leaves

          4  my beneficiary half of my money, would that play a

          5  factor into this?

          6                 The reason why I am so hung up on

          7  this bill is because I can't understand how we can

          8  justify someone who we can't even test if they had

          9  AIDS prior to coming on the job, or there is not a

         10  proof factor.

         11                 I mean, if there is no proof that a

         12  person received the AIDS virus while working, or

         13  while in the performance of his duties, then I have

         14  a problem with that because then what is to say

         15  that, why should I have to go for a physical if I

         16  have a bad back, or why should I go for a physical

         17  if I have a problem with my sight? Then where is the

         18  equity in that part now? Because if you are not

         19  going to test the person for something prior to him

         20  taking the job, don't we leave ourselves wide open?

         21                 I mean, am I talking nuts, or am I

         22  talking sensible? I mean, it just doesn't make sense

         23  to me. We can't test if they have it, but we are

         24  going to give them disability, or three-quarters,

         25  God forbid if they do have it and acquire it at a
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          2  later date, where does -- it doesn't make sense to

          3  me, it just does not. They are entitled to

          4  three-quarters automatically anyhow, because if they

          5  came down and proved there was a job-related injury

          6  by a needle or a cutting or something like that,

          7  they would automatically get it anyway.

          8                 MR. NORTH: I do not think that your

          9   -- your questions are very good questions, and just

         10  to maybe give you some perspective, there currently

         11  are bills that allow for presumptive issues on HIV,

         12  tuberculosis and hepatitis for Correction Officers

         13  as part of their three-quarters bill they got a year

         14  or so ago, and for emergency medical technicals.

         15                 In both of those cases, it is now the

         16  New York City Employees Retirement System Board of

         17  Trustees that is struggling with the question

         18  exactly how to administer a bill that says certain

         19  things are presumptive, but they may be disproved or

         20  approved to the contrary if proved by competent

         21  evidence.

         22                 And as Mr. Hanley pointed out in the

         23  heart and lung bills, proving something to the

         24  contrary by competent evidence is difficult. It is

         25  not impossible. But in fact the NYCRS Board of
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          2  Trustees is struggling a great deal with this

          3  question.

          4                 If you don't test someone when they

          5  first come in, and yet they come up with a disease

          6  that could just as easily be lifestyles and

          7  performance of duty, there is no real necessary

          8  evidence that there is performance, anything

          9  happened in the line of duty, but you don't want to

         10  go back and investigate all of the details of

         11  someone's life abusively, but on the same token you

         12  don't want to give inappropriate gifts of public

         13  funds if it really isn't line of duty. This is very

         14  difficult, and I am glad I am leaving it to the

         15  Board of Trustees to figure out who --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: The other

         17  thing you just mentioned, you mentioned about heart

         18  and lung; we do have a mechanism in place, because

         19  when a person does take a physical for almost every

         20  civil service, we do test their heart, we do test

         21  their blood pressure, we do write down their blood

         22  pressure, the doctor does listen to his heart or her

         23  heart. I mean, I have actually known people to be

         24  tested and they have actually had to take a

         25  cardiogram to prove they didn't have a heart
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          2  problem. I mean, I know people who were disqualified

          3  from the Police Department because they had a heart

          4  murmur several years ago, and the heart murmur goes

          5  back to the childhood ages.

          6                 So, we do actually do see, where I

          7  can understand the heart and lung bill, especially

          8  with the Police Department and the Fire Department

          9  because of the stress of the job, but this thing

         10  here to me just does not sit well.

         11                 MR. NORTH: It does leave some

         12  challenges to be answered.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Mr. Miller has a

         14  question to ask.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Sir, you

         16  testified in your testimony that the concern of the

         17  actuary is the actual cost of this legislation; is

         18  that correct?

         19                 MR. NORTH: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I don't

         21  understand how that could be the case, because the

         22  actual cost of this legislation is whatever the cost

         23  is and with regard to benefits that are paid out as

         24  a result of the amendment in this legislation,

         25  right?
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          2                 MR. NORTH: That is correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So, actually

          4  your concern isn't the actual cost, your concern is

          5  the total estimated cost, right?

          6                 MR. NORTH: I guess I prefer to phrase

          7  it my concern is the actual cost, and of course the

          8  actuary is trying to make the best estimate of

          9  events that currently have not yet happened.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: But if the

         11  actuary wanted to charge the system for what the

         12  actual cost was, you can wait and see whether

         13  anybody actually does use this benefit, maybe no one

         14  uses it ever. And then the actual cost will be zero,

         15  right? If a lot of people use it it could be more.

         16  But if our concern was the actual cost, we would

         17  wait and see what the cost is, right?

         18                 MR. NORTH: I think I would like to

         19  answer that by saying with respect to the entire

         20  retirement system, in a sense until someone retires

         21  and begins collecting, we do not know what their

         22  individual cost will be, we make estimates.

         23                 From a point of view of

         24  intergenerational equity to the taxpayers however,

         25  we believe it is appropriate to finance such
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          2  benefits over the working lifetime of the members

          3  using the best estimates we can.

          4                 We know in advance we won't be

          5  perfect on any individual. We may even miss quite a

          6  bit for the group, but we hope that the estimate

          7  will come out fairly, fairly well. And what we are

          8  trying to do with this bill is that same set of

          9  concepts and theory in terms of pricing both the

         10  total value of the estimated benefits that will be

         11  paid if we believe this will come to pass under the

         12  assumption, if it does --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: But you are

         14  not required by law to do that, right? It is an

         15  option which you are taking, correct?

         16                 MR. NORTH: Well, by law the actuary

         17  is required to recommend to the Board of Trustees

         18  assumptions to be used to fund the systems, and

         19  these assumptions, this bill would affect the choice

         20  of those assumptions.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay, but I

         22  just want to be clear, because there was discussion

         23  in your testimony about what the actual cost of this

         24  bill and our staff has developed some estimates and

         25  you have developed different estimates, but your
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          2  estimates are just estimates and our estimates are

          3  just estimates and we don't know what the actual

          4  cost is. So, when you said actual cost, you really

          5  mean total estimated cost, which you are then

          6  spreading over a series of years; is that correct?

          7                 MR. NORTH: I think as you pointed

          8  out, the actual cost will be the benefits that are

          9  ultimately paid.

         10                 With respect to the budget, I think

         11  maybe that is something that could bring this closer

         12  in.

         13                 For Fiscal Year 2000, if the actuary

         14  makes no recommended change in assumptions, there

         15  will be no budget hit on this bill in Fiscal Year

         16  2000.

         17                 As it stands as of today, the actuary

         18  is expecting to make recommended changes in

         19  actuarial assumptions and methods as of June 30,

         20  '99. If this bill is enacted, I anticipate that I

         21  will recommend changes to the assumptions of

         22  ordinary and accident disability, such that right at

         23  the moment my best expected judgment is that the

         24  budget for Fiscal Year 2000 will be $4.1 million

         25  greater upon adoption of those assumptions.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So, in other

          3  words, you are saying is the actual cost is whatever

          4  you say the actual cost is.

          5                 MR. NORTH: No, I am trying not to say

          6  that. I am trying to say that the budget effect is

          7  based on the assumptions and methods used, and the

          8  actuary anticipates recommending assumptions that

          9  would produce $4.1 million more.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: All right, I

         11  just wanted to bring this into relief in a certain

         12  sense because I think it is important to point out

         13  that to all involved that what you are talking about

         14  are estimates, what our staff has talked about are

         15  estimates, other people will come and give different

         16  estimates. Your estimates, or the estimates that you

         17  recommend and then ultimately they become in a

         18  certain sense cost because you recommend them, and

         19  we no longer have the Board of Estimate, John Sabini

         20  points out, so we will reduce some estimates -- what

         21  I am trying to say here is that reasonable minds I

         22  think have disagreed on the actual cost -- what the

         23  actual cost of this bill will be, and that there are

         24  different options and ways for it to be paid for.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: At this moment

          3  Steve DiBrienza has a question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman. It actually isn't necessarily a

          6  question, so much as to make sure I understand.

          7                 This notion about whether you make

          8  changes or not has to do with the likelihood of

          9  people obtaining benefits under this would-be

         10  change; is that correct?

         11                 MR. NORTH: Ultimately if this

         12  legislation is enacted. I presume people will

         13  undertake what is in their best interests.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

         15                 MR. NORTH: And apply for the benefits

         16  or not.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: So you

         18  begin to do some calculation, if history is any

         19  guide this could happen, X, Y, Z could happen and

         20  you begin to do these calculations.

         21                 Now, as much as I appreciate that and

         22  understand that is the science that you are engaged

         23  in, in its numbers and it's more objective, I don't

         24  think we could walk away from the subjective kind of

         25  inferences of legislation like this.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 I mean, no one is going to go out and

          3  voluntarily engage in behavior to contract, to

          4  become HIV positive or contract full-blown AIDS now

          5  for the benefit of some kind of three-quarter

          6  pension. As we all know, the state of scientific

          7  affairs is such that unfortunately if one has

          8  full-blown AIDS, it is a death sentence, number one.

          9                 Number two, it seems to me that a

         10  presumption is just that, a presumption. It is what

         11  is often referred to as rebuttable. So, if one

         12  presents a case of a slashing of being stabbed with

         13  a needle, God forbid one officer who protects this

         14  City or one firefighter who protects this city is

         15  stabbed with a needle and contracts the HIV virus

         16  and ultimately is moving through life being HIV

         17  positive and perhaps full-blown AIDS, and receives

         18  some benefit as a result of that life he gave or she

         19  gave to the City - wonder. It is worth it.

         20                 And the opposite situation, if

         21  someone presents with no incidence whatsoever, no

         22  record, no history, no involvement, and for some

         23  other worldy reason, presents a claim, that is a

         24  rebuttable presumption. And I don't believe that

         25  will ever happen. But in the odd event that it does,
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          2  it is a rebuttable presumption.

          3                 So, while I appreciate the work you

          4  have to do, and these comments really aren't

          5  directed to you, they are directed to the

          6  Administration who presented the kind of substantive

          7  argument, as opposed to the financials, I thought it

          8  was important that the record reflect that.

          9                 And while at first blush one might

         10  hesitate and say there could be a false claim, when

         11  you begin to play it out and think about it, think

         12  about one officer getting stuck with a needle as he

         13  is busting up some drug den, and then what we do

         14  assuming we do pass it is worth it. And the

         15  corollary can always be rebutted, if there was that

         16  strange situation where without incidence, without

         17  involvement, without active police work, without

         18  anything that really could be considered in the line

         19  of duty a claim was made.

         20                 I don't think that people are rushing

         21  out the door to find a way, find this method to

         22  obtain this particular pension benefit. I mean there

         23  is still unfortunately all too much stigma attached

         24  and so on and we won't go into that for another day.

         25  I don't think people are lining up on the door to
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          2  make false claims under this provision.

          3                 Having said that, Mr. Chairman, I

          4  appreciate your giving me the time to bend the rule

          5  a little bit, because it really didn't apply to

          6  these witnesses, and I am prepared to vote when you

          7  call the roll.

          8                 MR. NORTH: If I may, Mr. Chairman,

          9  just to clarify the record, I believe the example

         10  that you utilized would in fact currently be covered

         11  by our three-quarters line of duty law, and that the

         12  individual would receive the benefits.

         13                 In a case of someone who is injured

         14  in the line of duty and it is currently documented,

         15  even though say AIDS might take some time to

         16  develop, if they can point back to a specific

         17  incident during the line of duty that caused their

         18  disability, then they would be most likely by the

         19  Board of Trustees granted the case.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I would

         21  rather be sure though. That is really what it comes

         22  down to. And I appreciate that clarification. I

         23  think it is important for the record, you are right.

         24  In the most egregious, clearer cases it would happen

         25  and the decisions would be probably well thought
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          2  out. But I think we error on the side of caution in

          3  this case.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Very quickly,

          6  would you care to comment on the application for the

          7  age 57 retirement?

          8                 We are trying to see how quickly we

          9  can do this because we need to vote and then Finance

         10  has to come back in here.

         11                 MR. NORTH: We, in our office, have

         12  not yet completed the calculations. We have done for

         13  one group, where we found about 1,875 persons who

         14  might so choose to benefit but this is one subgroup

         15  and we have no reason to believe that the fiscal

         16  notes total dollar amount of a million and a half a

         17  year may not be within a reasonable range. Although

         18  we have not completed our calculations.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 At this moment we would like to call

         22  Mr. Mike Carter and the Firefighters that will be

         23  testifying on SLR 124. Then we will go and we will

         24  listen to Andy from DC 37 on the preconsidered SLR.

         25                 Good afternoon. Welcome.
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          2                 MR. CARTER: Good afternoon. Thank

          3  you. My name is Michael Carter, I am the Vice

          4  President, Legislative Chairman for the Uniformed

          5  Firefighters Association. And I have also been

          6  designated the spokesperson by the Uniformed

          7  Coalition which represents the firefighters, fire

          8  officers, police officers, superiors and detectives,

          9  to speak before the Council in support of this bill.

         10                 This legislation is not

         11  ground-breaking. As Council is aware, a similar

         12  measure was passed for EMS approximately one year

         13  ago. This SLR 124 would create a rebuttable

         14  presumption for tuberculosis, hepatitis and HIV with

         15  a documented exposure.

         16                 Of course, a member would also have

         17  to be disabled as a result to qualify for the

         18  presumption, and as Council is aware, firefighters

         19  for the last five years have been engaged in a first

         20  responder program.

         21                 What this typically means for our

         22  firefighters as well as our police officers is that

         23  on segment 1, 2 and 3s, which are the most serious

         24  injuries that are life-threatening, as well as

         25  traumas, accidents and such, that we are
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          2  simultaneously dispatched, all three agencies, and

          3  we often respond and arrive well ahead of EMS.

          4                 In addition, because of some problems

          5  in our dispatch systems, fire and police are not

          6  afforded the same detailed medical information that

          7  is routinely dispatched with EMS. The result is

          8  firefighters and police officers are now working

          9  shoulder to shoulder with their brothers and sisters

         10  in EMS and we are not afforded the same protection

         11  as those members.

         12                 Several issues were raised and I

         13  would like to address some of them.

         14                 First, this is a rebuttable

         15  presumption. Our heart bill, cancer bill and lung

         16  bill are rebutted frequently. So, to say that this

         17  type of law will never be rebutted I think is

         18  absolutely not true and the history would bear it

         19  out.

         20                 One thing that was discussed at

         21  length was, well, how do we know? And while we don't

         22  screen for HIV upon entry, the Council should

         23  realize that firefighters are required to pass, and

         24  police officers, a strenuous physical exam, a

         25  pre-employment medical at the end of the
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          2  probationary period, to become a firefighter police

          3  officer. They again have to pass a medical, and any

          4  firefighters or police officers, at some point in

          5  time if they do have the HIV virus, they will have

          6  to report to health services.

          7                 So, those individuals will in fact be

          8  a known quantity to our Bureau of Health Services.

          9                 So, if hypothetically three years

         10  from now a member wants to avail himself to the

         11  protections of this bill, but yet he is being

         12  treated by our health services for the last year and

         13  does not have any evidence of a document of

         14  exposure, and that is a very aspect of this bill, is

         15  that, and I just bring your attention, when they

         16  talk of the HIV virus, where the employee may have

         17  been exposed to bodily fluids of a person under his

         18  or her care or treatment, and what that practically

         19  means is that to avail yourself to the protections

         20  to this bill, at least in regards to the HIV, one

         21  would have to actually fill out a medical form and

         22  there would have to be a documented and verified

         23  exposure to the HIV virus.

         24                 Hepatitis and tuberculosis are

         25  absolutely tested in the Fire Department. We are
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          2  required to take an inoculation to protect us from

          3  hepatitis, that is a federal mandate. We are given

          4  baseline screening on a regular basis and, again, we

          5  report every 18 months to the Bureau of Health

          6  Services where we are again screened for

          7  tuberculosis.

          8                 In terms of the $4 million, when I

          9  found out that the City was opposed to this bill, I

         10  was at that point told they estimated it was a $2

         11  million cost. Somewhere that number doubled.

         12                 I can tell you that we have estimated

         13  four members of the police and fire systems would be

         14  eligible for this per year. And to put it in very

         15  simple terms, all that they would be available for

         16  is the difference between a half pay, ordinary

         17  disability and the three-quarters disability. The

         18  monetary difference is approximately $15,000 per

         19  year.

         20                 I don't know how even using Mr.

         21  North's number of eight that one could ever get to

         22  such a number.

         23                 There was also talk about the fact

         24  that under the present system we could be entitled

         25  to three-quarters for this. I am a Pension Board
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          2  trustee and have been so for six years. That is

          3  absolutely not true. It is impossible under the

          4  current law and the proof is in the pudding. To date

          5  not one single firefighter has been put out of his

          6  job on a line of duty disability because of HIV,

          7  tuberculosis or hepatitis, and the reason is very

          8  simple: We, on the other side, could never prove

          9  without a presumptive law that the member didn't

         10  incur it somewhere else. And I would ask you to ask

         11  the people who testified, if they could indeed get

         12  this three-quarters pension anyway, then how many?

         13  And the answer is in the fire system zero. I know it

         14  for a fact.

         15                 As I said before, and I am going to

         16  wrap it up, we are not breaking new ground. This

         17  language is exactly identical to that that this

         18  Council passed for EMS. One can only look at the

         19  EMS, they have almost one year of history behind

         20  themselves. They do this full time and they have one

         21  case so far. So, I certainly don't think the fiscal

         22  sky is falling.

         23                 For Fire and Police we have a pension

         24  system with a combined net worth of somewhere in the

         25  area of $25 billion. This is not going to break the
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          2  bank, and I thank you for your time, and if you have

          3  any questions, I will be happy to answer them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We want to thank

          5  you. I don't think we have any questions at the

          6  moment, if anything. Thank you.

          7                 We would like to call up Andy for the

          8  preconsidered.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 MR. CARTER: Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good afternoon.

         12                 MR. INGLESBY: Good afternoon, Council

         13  Member Rivera. My name is Andy Inglesby, I am the

         14  Assistant Director of the Political Action and

         15  Legislation Department of DC 37. We are here today

         16  to voice our support for Preconsidered SLR A.8139

         17  and S.5714. Instead of reading my support memo, I

         18  just would like to say that the primary purpose of

         19  this legislation is to ensure that pension plan

         20  members who are required to pay additional member

         21  contributions are able to derive the appropriate

         22  benefit from the plan in which they are enrolled.

         23                 I have Joel Geller from the DC 37

         24  Legal Division who will explain some of the

         25  technical aspects of the bill as well.
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          2                 MR. GELLER: Actually, what I would

          3  like to do is just very quickly, as the bill is

          4  designed to allow people who are unable to get the

          5  benefits of the Early Retirement Plan that was

          6  passed in 1995 to not be charged the additional

          7  member contribution which ranged from 2.85 percent

          8  to 4.83 percent on salary per person. That money,

          9  that additional contribution money does not serve

         10  any purpose to those people, that money is just

         11  essentially lost to them.

         12                 We are trying to provide a means by

         13  which people can opt out of the program, they would

         14  remain, contrary to what Commissioner Hanley said,

         15  they would remain in the pension program, they would

         16  continue to pay the contributions that are mandated

         17  by state law. They just would not be charged the

         18  additional contributions which are of no use to them

         19  and for which they get no benefit.

         20                 I would also like to respond to

         21  Commissioner Hanley in one other way.

         22                 Commissioner Hanley is correct in

         23  saying that this bill in 1995 that established this

         24  program is extremely complex. The unions and the

         25  City agree that there would be problems down the
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          2  road and that they would have to be addressed.

          3                 We are addressing this problem today

          4  in a way that has a minor impact on the finances of

          5  their pension system, and in exchange it provides a

          6  maximum benefit for employees who are inequitably

          7  affected by the program as it stands now.

          8                 And finally, I would like to point

          9  out that as the other systems, the New York City

         10  Employees Retirement System is currently funded at

         11  100 percent or even above 100 percent, and the

         12  City's contribution levels are going down to zero at

         13  this point, to be able to remedy the situation for

         14  these employees, these older workers at this time,

         15  would seem to be -- this is an appropriate time to

         16  do that.

         17                 If there are any other questions, I

         18  would be glad to answer them.

         19                 MR. INGLESBY: And I would also like

         20  to reiterate the cost of this legislation would be

         21  $1.5 million per year, which approximately $1

         22  million of that would be incurred by the City.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 MR. INGLESBY: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: There are no

          3  questions.

          4                 We would like to ask if anybody has

          5  any objection to M572, 574, 575, 576 and 577, and

          6  that is related to the transfers and switches of

          7  parkland located throughout the City?

          8                 Any objections? No?

          9                 Hearing none, then we are going to

         10  the Omnibus Tax Bill, are there any objections?

         11  Would anyone like to speak on it?

         12                 Thank you very much. All right, there

         13  were no objections on the Omnibus Bill.

         14                 We would like to hear about the

         15  preconsidered Mayor's message, if there is any

         16  objection to that? Hearing none.

         17                 This is an item which we were

         18  speaking of, has been added to this agenda, and it

         19  is an act to amend the local Firemen's Law in

         20  relation to the sales of bonds and notes of the City

         21  of New York. It is a communication from the Mayor.

         22  Are there any objections? Hearing none.

         23                 Where is Claude? We are waiting for

         24  Claude. We would like to very quickly give you about

         25  two minutes so you can state if you are in
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          2  opposition to SLR 79. We are about ready to vote.

          3                 Will you please identify yourself for

          4  the record, and hopefully you can keep your comments

          5  within two minutes.

          6                 MR. HOFFER: I will do my best. Thank

          7  you, Mr. Chairman. My name is Mark Hoffer, I am

          8  General Counsel of the Department of Environmental

          9  Protection, DEP. With me, to my left, is Douglas

         10  Greeley, our Deputy Commissioner for Water and Sewer

         11  Operations. We are here today to speak in opposition

         12  and to urge the Council not to adopt SLR 79, which

         13  is a home rule message relating to a bill in Albany

         14  who will make Jerome Park Reservior, and certain

         15  lands adjacent thereto, parkland.

         16                 We oppose this measure for three very

         17  important and compelling reasons. First and

         18  foremost, the reservoir and its related facilities

         19  today are a vital and integral part of the New York

         20  City water supply. They are part of the Croton Water

         21  Supply system, which provides ten percent of the

         22  City's daily drinking water needs and can provide up

         23  to 30 percent of the City's needs in times of

         24  drought.

         25                 It would be extremely disadvantageous

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  to the Department and to the City to change the

          3  legal status of the reservoir and make it more

          4  difficult, if not impossible, for the Department to

          5  operate it as part of the water supply system.

          6                 By mapping it as a parkland you call

          7  into question its continuing use as the water supply

          8  infrastructure item and any upgrades, modifications

          9  or alterations that the Department might wish to

         10  make at those facilities.

         11                 Second, the Jerome Park Reservoir is

         12  related to the City's current plans to filter the

         13  Croton Water Supply. As the Council knows, the

         14  Department has indicated that it prefers to site a

         15  Croton filtration plant at the Mosholu golf course

         16  in Van Cortlandt Park, and there is a pending ULURP

         17  proceeding with respect to that proposed land use.

         18                 However, whether or not a filtration

         19  facility is built, whether or not a filtration

         20  facility is built at Van Cortlandt Park, there is

         21  ongoing work necessary at Jerome Park as a part of

         22  the water supply system.

         23                 We are in the midst of making

         24  significant improvements there today, and mapping

         25  this area as a parkland would, as I mentioned
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          2  before, create uncertainty and impediments to the

          3  City carrying forward the work that is now underway

          4  and to any future modifications or improvements

          5  through those facilities.

          6                 I might also add, as an aside that

          7  even though the City's plans are to site the

          8  filtration facility in Van Cortlandt Park,

          9  specifically at the Mosholu golf course, in the

         10  event that becomes impossible for any reason, the

         11  effect of this home rule message and the legislation

         12  that it relates to, if adopted, could preclude the

         13  use of the Jerome Park Reservoir as an alternative

         14  site for the filtration plant.

         15                 This could create significant legal

         16  and financial penalties for the City of New York

         17  under a Federal Court consent decree that relates to

         18  the construction of a filtration plant.

         19                 Finally, third, even when a

         20  filtration facility is built, there will be an

         21  ongoing need, we foresee a strong likelihood that

         22  there will be an ongoing need for some period of

         23  time, to continue to use Jerome Park Reservoir

         24  and/or the gatehouses and other facilities that

         25  exist at Jerome Park Reservoir, as part of the water
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          2  supply.

          3                 The reservoir may be needed for

          4  emergency storage. The reservoir may be needed to

          5  discharge water from a filtration facility when it

          6  is under repair. We may need to do work there to

          7  improve distribution of water to the Bronx and

          8  Manhattan, and we may need to do additional

          9  improvements for pumping water out of the Croton

         10  Filtration facility and to users in the City.

         11                 For all of these reasons, we strongly

         12  oppose, as we did two years ago, any attempt at this

         13  time to make Jerome Park Reservoir and its

         14  neighboring lands parklands. We love parks, just as

         15  the members of the Council do, and as everyone does.

         16  However, this measure is premature, it is

         17  potentially dangerous to the City and potentially

         18  costly to the City in light of the legal constraints

         19  we are currently operating under.

         20                 I thank you for the Committee's

         21  patience, and Mr. Greeley and I would be pleased to

         22  answer any questions the Committee might have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I understand

         24  Steve DiBrienza would like to respond to I guess

         25  some of the things that you have said.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman.

          4                 Let me tell you how ridiculous your

          5  position and presentation is, all right? By way of

          6  commentaries and questions.

          7                 First off, if you weren't so

          8  committed to developing upstate, you know, out of

          9  New York, upstate around the reservoirs, rather than

         10  protecting them, we may not even need a filtration

         11  plant. But that is for another day.

         12                 Now, let's assume for argument's sake

         13  we need a filtration plant. Your plan is to put it

         14  in where? The Mosholu Park Golf Course, correct?

         15                 MR. HOFFER: That is correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: That is

         17  parkland, correct?

         18                 MR. HOFFER: That is correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: You are

         20  putting a filtration plant, or you want to, in

         21  parkland, and you are sitting here objecting to us,

         22  designating Jerome Park Reservoir and the

         23  surrounding areas parkland because you might have to

         24  put a filtration plant in some day. Hello - do you

         25  hear yourself?
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          2                 Let me finish, all right? I am kind

          3  of being jocular because it is budget day. So, you

          4  know, I shouldn't say hello, I don't know you well

          5  enough, you are not a commissioner, so I have more

          6  fun fighting with commissioners.

          7                 In any event, do you see how

          8  illogical the position is? You don't deal with the

          9  first issue, which is protection of the areas

         10  upstate which if we did it right may not, lead to

         11  the suggestion we don't even need chemical

         12  filtration.

         13                 Secondly, you are already putting it,

         14  if you have your way, into parkland, so if becoming

         15  parkland doesn't prevent you from doing it, and if

         16  that one fell apart and this was parkland because of

         17  what we did and you had to put it there, you would

         18  have that same amount of battle. We are not exactly

         19  taking Jerome Park Reservoir and deciding to develop

         20  it, parkland, you know, open space, green space,

         21  surrounding areas, there is no real basis for

         22  objecting to this, in my humble opinion, based on

         23  your presentation.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you, Steve.
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          2                 Very, very quickly, I am just

          3  curious. We have been building a third water tunnel

          4  in this City for almost 20 years, have we not?

          5                 MR. HOFFER: That is correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Is there a

          7  filtration plant along with that system? And if

          8  there is, where is it at?

          9                 MR. HOFFER: The City currently has

         10  plans, as I indicated, to build a filtration plant

         11  for the Croton water supply. There is no current

         12  requirement to build a similar facility for the

         13  Catskill and Delaware water supply, and we are

         14  hoping to avoid that. We are operating under a

         15  federal decision today that basically allows us not

         16  to filter Catskill and Delaware water and we are

         17  hoping to continue that decision into the future.

         18                 If we need to build such a facility,

         19  there are studies and design work underway to day,

         20  both to design and --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: But that third

         22  water -- that third tunnel, does it go straight

         23  through the Bronx or does it go straight to Midtown

         24  Manhattan?

         25                 MR. HOFFER: There are portions of the
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          2  third water tunnel that are going to be under

          3  various boroughs. There is a part that goes under

          4  the Bronx, there is a part that goes under Queens, a

          5  part under Manhattan and a part under Brooklyn.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Would you

          7  consider building a filtration plant in Central

          8  Park?

          9                 MR. HOFFER: Right now we couldn't

         10  build it in Central Park. The plant would have to be

         11  near where the Croton Aqueduct is. There is not an

         12  unlimited range of places we could build such a

         13  facility.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Mr.

         15  Chairman, I just wanted to leave the record with one

         16  other thought.

         17                 If, in fact, your agency was more

         18  aggressive in fighting the development interests who

         19  want to encroach upon the upstate reservoirs, I

         20  think it might help you not have to do any

         21  filtration plants, but that is for a debate at EP.

         22                 MR. HOFFER: Well, Councilman, if I

         23  could, I would like to respond briefly to some of

         24  the comments you made on the record.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Sure.
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          2                 MR. HOFFER: You are absolutely right

          3  that it is a wise policy to do all that we can to

          4  protect water at its source, no one debates that.

          5                 I take issue with your statement that

          6  the City and the Department has been lax, and this

          7  is somehow the reason why we are here today and why

          8  we are opposed to the home rule message in question.

          9  I spent two and a half years with my colleagues from

         10  the Law Department negotiating a watershed

         11  agreement. We spend 18, 20, 24 hours a day keeping

         12  an eye on our water supply upstate.

         13                 The issue regarding the plant, just

         14  to make it clear, is not because of any laxity or

         15  lack of interest in protecting the water supply

         16  upstate.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         18                 MR. HOFFER: As you have heard before,

         19  and I won't belabor the point, the Croton water

         20  supply is very unique, it runs through a very

         21  developed portion of the state, it has its own

         22  unique operating problems, and operating conditions,

         23  and the City today, even as we speak, is enforcing

         24  its new watershed regulations, going to court,

         25  buying land east of the Hudson River, doing all of
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          2  the things that I think you and I would gladly agree

          3  upon, to pursue that aim.

          4                 The other point I would briefly like

          5  to make on the record is that there are differences

          6  between Central Park and Jerome Park.

          7                 Central Park was a park first. Jerome

          8  Park has been a water supply reservoir since its

          9  creation, and contrary to what you see before you

         10  and the statement of purpose for the bill in Albany,

         11  it is not a park and has never been used for a park.

         12  It is a water supply reservoir.

         13                 And, finally, if I may, with respect

         14  to the Councilman's points about siting a facility

         15  in Van Cortlandt Park and in Mosholu, there is a

         16  distinction here as well. In Mosholu we are going to

         17  build the facility completely underground. It will

         18  be invisible and the park will be restored and

         19  enhanced. When we are done indeed the facility will

         20  be ten times better than it exists today.

         21                 We are not proposing to take over a

         22  portion of the park permanently. We are not

         23  proposing to deprive users of the status of that

         24  real estate as a park, and our intention is once we

         25  build the facility that is needed to supply water
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          2  for 9 million people, half of the population of the

          3  state, we intend to leave the park even better than

          4  it is today.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Which means

          6  it being parkland doesn't prevent you from doing

          7  what you think is the right thing. So this one

          8  becoming parkland equally cannot prevent you, if you

          9  ever have to cross that bridge. That was the only

         10  point I was making.

         11                 MR. HOFFER: I appreciate it,

         12  Councilman --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: The status

         14  as parkland doesn't prevent you from doing what you

         15  want to do in one place, it can't magically prevent

         16  you from doing it in the other place.

         17                 In any event, I don't want to take

         18  the Chairman's time up any longer. Thank you.

         19                 MR. HOFFER: With respect, there are

         20  legal complications that don't quite make the

         21  analogy as easy as you make it sound.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 At this moment we are laying over the
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          2  first item, which is preconsidered SLR, and the

          3  other items are coupled on GO, and including the

          4  added last item, preconsidered Mayor's message,

          5  regarding the sales of bonds. We are at this moment

          6  ready to take a vote.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rivera.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes, on all.

          9                 On my extreme right there is a caucus

         10  going on, so I am going to call on my members who

         11  stand with me on my left.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Fisher.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER:  Aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Lasher.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Robles.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: DiBrienza.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Stabile.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: No on the

         22  preconsidered SLR. The reason I would like to

         23  explain my vote, I know I am doing it a little

         24  backwards, I think some integrity has to be held in

         25  collective bargaining, and if we go back twice on
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          2  something, you know, somewhere along the line

          3  someone has to say this is what we want and what we

          4  do.

          5                 On the other one I have very serious

          6  problems with the AIDS situation, how we can test or

          7  know someone has AIDS prior to coming on the job.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: No, on the

         11  preconsidered SLR, aye on all others.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Provenzano.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye on

         14  all.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Miller.

         16                 (No response.)

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Sabini.

         18                 (No response.)

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And Mary. All

         20  right, we are going to leave this vote open for Mary

         21  Pinkett. Let her know, please. And we are going to

         22  recess this meeting.

         23                 Will you announce the vote, Claude,

         24  please.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of
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          2  ten in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          3  abstentions, all coupled items are adopted, with the

          4  exception of SLR 124, which has a vote of nine in

          5  the affirmative, one in the negative and no

          6  abstentions. And preconsidered SLR blank, having to

          7  do with amended retirement and Social Security

          8  funds, was adopted by a vote of eight in the

          9  affirmative, two in the negative, no abstentions.

         10                 Please sign the reports and the vote

         11  is still open.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  The vote is

         14  now closed at 11 in the affirmative, none in the

         15  negative, no abstentions, with the two SLRs that I

         16  mentioned formerly, which are still the same.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 This meeting has been recessed. We

         20  will see you again hopefully pretty soon, within a

         21  week's time. In the meantime I am going to go and

         22  get my rice and beans, which are cold.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 1:55 p.m.)

         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 7th day of June 1999.
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